Court of Appeals for the appropriate circuit by January 26, 2010. Filing a petition for reconsideration by the Administrator of this final rule does not affect the finality of this action for the purposes of judicial review nor does it extend the time within which a petition for judicial review may be filed, and shall not postpone the effectiveness of such rule or action. This action may not be challenged later in proceedings to enforce its requirements. (See section 307(b)(2).)

List of Subjects in 40 CFR Part 52

Environmental protection, Air pollution control, Carbon monoxide,

Incorporation by reference, Intergovernmental relations, Nitrogen dioxide, Ozone, Particulate matter, Reporting and recordkeeping requirements, Volatile organic compounds.

Dated: November 16, 2009.

Beverly H. Banister,

Acting Regional Administrator, Region 4.

■ 40 CFR part 52 is amended as follows:

PART 52—[AMENDED]

■ 1. The authority citation for part 52 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 42. U.S.C. 7401 et seq.

Subpart L—Georgia

- 2. In § 52.570(c) the table is amended as follows:
- a. By revising the entries for "391–3–1–.01," "391–3–1–.02(2)(jjj)," "391–3–1–.02(12)," and "391–3–1–.03".
- b. By adding an entry in numerical order for "391–3–1–.02(6)".
- c. By removing the entry for "391–3–1–.02(2)(6)".

§ 52.570 Identification of plan.

(c) * * * * * *

EPA-APPROVED GEORGIA REGULATIONS

	- /	State effec-			
State citation	Title/subject	tive date	EPA approval date	E	Explanation
391–3–1–.01	Definitions	7/25/07	11/27/09 [Insert citation of publication].		
*	* *		* *	*	*
391–3–1–.02(2) (jjj)	$NO_{\rm X}$ Emissions from Electric Utility Steam Generating Units.	3/12/07	11/27/09 [Insert citation of publication].		
*	* *		* *	*	*
391–3–1–.02(6)	Source Monitoring	3/12/07	11/27/09 [Insert citation of publication].		
*	* *		* *	*	*
391–3–1–.02(12)	Clean Air Interstate Rule $NO_{\rm X}$ Annual Trading Program.	7/25/07	11/27/09 [Insert citation of publication].		
*	* *		* *	*	*
391–3–1–.03	Permits	7/25/07	11/27/09 [Insert citation of publication].		nit Fees; Paragraph (10) Title rmits are not Federally ap-
*	* *		* *	*	*

[FR Doc. E9–28255 Filed 11–25–09; 8:45 am]

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

40 CFR Part 52

[EPA-HQ-OAR-2009-0670; FRL-8985-6]

Finding of Failure To Submit State Implementation Plans Required for the 1997 Particulate Matter Less Than 2.5 Micrometer (PM_{2.5}) National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS)

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The EPA is taking a final action in which it finds that three

States, Georgia, Illinois, and Pennsylvania, have failed to submit State Implementation Plans (SIPs) to satisfy requirements of the Clean Air Act (ČAA) for attaining the 1997 National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for particulate matter less than 2.5 micrometers (PM_{2.5}). Under the CAA and EPA's implementing regulations, States with nonattainment areas were required to submit SIPs by April 5, 2008, demonstrating how each nonattainment area would attain the 1997 PM_{2.5} standards as expeditiously as practicable. If within 18 months of the effective date of this notice EPA has not determined that the State has submitted the required nonattainment plan, then any new or modified source in the nonattainment area will be required to obtain emission reduction offsets that exceed its emission increases on a two-to-one basis. If

within 24 months of the effective date of this notice EPA has not determined that the State has submitted the required SIP, then the highway funding sanction also will apply in the nonattainment area. No later than 2 years after EPA makes the finding, EPA must promulgate a Federal Implementation Plan (FIP) if the State has not submitted the required nonattainment SIP and EPA has not approved it.

DATES: *Effective Date.* This action is effective on November 27, 2009.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

General questions concerning this notice should be addressed to Mr. Butch Stackhouse, Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards, Air Quality Policy Division, Mail Code: C504–2, 109 T.W. Alexander Drive, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711; telephone (919) 541–5208.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: For questions related to a specific State

please contact the appropriate regional office:

Regional offices	States
Cristina Fernandez, Associate Director, Office of Air Program Planning (3AP30), Air Protection Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103–2023.	Pennsylvania.
Dick Schutt, Chief, Air Planning Branch, Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, EPA Region IV, 61 Forsyth Street, SW., Atlanta, Georgia 30303–8960.	Georgia.
Jay Bortzer, Chief, Air Programs Branch, EPA Region V, 77 West Jackson Street, Chicago, IL 60604	Illinois.

Table of Contents

- I. Background.
 - A. Statutory Requirements.
 - B. Consequences of Findings of Failure to Submit.
- II. This Action.
- III. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews.
- A. Notice and Comment Under the Administrative Procedures Act.
- B. Effective Date Under the Administrative Procedures Act.
- C. Executive Order 12866: Regulatory Planning and Review.
- D. Paperwork Reduction Act.
- E. Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA).
- F. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act.
- G. Executive Order 13132: Federalism.
- H. Executive Order 13175: Consultation and Coordination With Indian Tribal Governments
- I . Executive Order 13045: Protection of Children From Environmental Health and Safety Risks.
- J. Executive Order 13211: Actions That Significantly Affect Energy Supply, Distribution, or Use.
- K. Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions To Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations.
- L. National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act.
- M. Congressional Review Act.
- N. Judicial Review.

I. Background

The CAA requires States with areas that are designated nonattainment for the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS to develop a SIP providing how the State will attain the NAAQS. Section 172 of the CAA specifies the required elements of a SIP for an area designated nonattainment for the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS. These requirements include, but are not limited to, an attainment demonstration, reasonably available control measures (RACM) and reasonably available control technology (RACT), annual emissions reductions to ensure reasonable further progress (RFP), and contingency measures. Most States with PM_{2.5} nonattainment areas designated in 2005 have submitted SIPs addressing these requirements as required under the CAA and EPA's implementing regulations. However, three States (Georgia, Illinois, and Pennsylvania) have not yet submitted SIPs to satisfy these requirements for four PM_{2.5}

nonattainment areas. By this action, EPA is making a finding that these States have failed to submit the required SIPs for these areas.

A. Statutory Requirements

On July 18, 1997, EPA promulgated the NAAQS for fine particles (PM_{2.5}). The 1997 annual standard was set at a level of 15 micrograms per cubic meter, based on the 3-year average of annual mean PM_{2.5} concentrations. The 1997 24-hour standard was set at a level of 65 micrograms per cubic meter, based on the 3-year average of the 98th percentile of 24-hour concentrations. (62 FR 38652). These standards remain in effect. See 40 CFR section 50.7.

The designation of PM_{2.5} nonattainment areas was delayed due to the need to obtain 3 years of data from an expanded nationwide air quality monitoring network, as well as due to a series of legal challenges to the 1997 standards which were resolved in 2002. See Whitman v. American Trucking Associations, Inc., 121 S.Ct. 903 (2001). The Transportation Equity Act for the Twenty-first Century revised the deadline for promulgation of designations to December 31, 2004, in order to provide additional time to collect air quality monitoring data, obtain designation recommendations from the States, and finalize the designation process.

The $PM_{2.5}$ designations based on 2001-2003 air quality data were published in the Federal Register on January 5, 2005 (70 FR 943). A total of 47 nonattainment areas were identified. EPA noted that because 2004 air quality data was just becoming available, it would consider such data and modify the designations as appropriate prior to the April 5, 2005, effective date. EPA issued a supplemental notice on April 5, 2005 (70 FR 19844; published April 14, 2005), indicating that eight areas changed status to attainment based on consideration of 2002-2004 data, resulting in a final list of 39 areas designated as nonattainment for the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS.

On April 25, 2007 (72 FR 20586), EPA published a final rule describing the requirements for implementation plans

designed to meet the 1997 $PM_{2.5}$ standards (the " $PM_{2.5}$ Implementation Rule"). Section 172 of the CAA requires States with nonattainment areas to submit nonattainment SIPs within 3 years of the effective date of the designation. Therefore, the $PM_{2.5}$ plans were required to be submitted by April 5, 2008.

As explained in further detail in the PM_{2.5} Implementation Rule, the key required elements of the nonattainment SIP include the attainment demonstration, RACM and RACT, RFP, and contingency measures. The attainment demonstration is required to show how the nonattainment area would attain the 1997 PM_{2.5} standards as expeditiously as practicable, but no later than April 5, 2010. (Note that for an area with a more severe or complex nonattainment problem, the State could propose in its plan to have an extended attainment date of an additional one to 5 years beyond the initial 5-year period if it meets the statutory and regulatory requirements.) The attainment demonstration takes into account projected emission reductions from existing Federal and State measures, plus any additional RACM/RACT that can be adopted by the State to attain "as expeditiously as practicable." Air quality modeling of these projected emissions reductions in future years is an important element of the attainment demonstration.

Each nonattainment SIP must include RACM and RACT as necessary for the area to attain the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS. The CAA requires the State to demonstrate that it has adopted all RACM, considering economic and technical feasibility and other factors, that are needed to show that the area will attain the fine particle standards as expeditiously as practicable. The PM_{2.5} Implementation Rule sets forth more specific requirements and guidance for making RACM and RACT determinations.

Each plan must also ensure that the area is making RFP in terms of emission reductions and air quality improvements toward attainment. The $PM_{2.5}$ Implementation Rule provides that, for areas with an attainment date

within 5 years of designation, the attainment demonstration is considered to satisfy the RFP requirement. Areas with attainment dates beyond 2010 are required to submit an RFP plan according to the requirements in the implementation rule.

ŚIPs must also include contingency measures, which are emission reduction measures to be undertaken if the area fails to satisfy the RFP requirement or fails to attain the standards by the attainment date. These measures are to take effect without significant further action by the State or EPA.

We note that several PM_{2.5} nonattainment areas currently have air quality that attains the level of the 1997 $PM_{2.5}$ NAAQS, but have not yet completed the process for redesignating the area to attainment. Under EPA's "Clean Data Policy," certain nonattainment SIP submission requirements may be suspended if the area is monitoring attainment. See 40 CFR 50.1004(c). EPA identifies these areas through clean data determinations published in the Federal Register. Pursuant to 40 CFR 51.1004, the States' obligation to submit the RACM/RACT, contingency measures, RFP, and attainment demonstrations are stayed as of the effective date of a final approval of the clean air determination for these areas. This stay will remain in effect for so long as the area remains in attainment and will no longer apply if the area is redesignated to attainment. For this reason, States with areas that have received final clean data determinations are not subject to the final action in this notice.

B. Consequences of Findings of Failure To Submit

Section 179(a)(1) of the CAA establishes specific consequences if EPA finds that a State has failed to submit a SIP or, with regard to a submitted SIP, if EPA determines it is incomplete or if EPA disapproves it. Additionally, any of these findings also triggers an obligation for EPA to promulgate a FIP if the State has not submitted, and EPA has not approved, the required SIP within 2 years of the finding. CAA section 110(c). The first finding, that a State has failed to submit a plan or one or more elements of a plan required under the CAA, is the finding that EPA is making in this action.

EPA is finding that three States have failed to make the required nonattainment SIP submissions for four nonattainment areas. If EPA has not affirmatively determined that a State has made the required complete nonattainment SIP submission within 18 months of the effective date of this

action, pursuant to CAA section 179(a) and (b) and 40 CFR 52.31, the offset sanction identified in CAA section 179(b)(2) will apply in the area subject to the finding. If EPA has not affirmatively determined that the State has made a complete submission within 6 months after the emission offset sanction is imposed, then the highway funding sanction will also apply in areas designated nonattainment, in accordance with CAA section 179(b)(1) and 40 CFR 52.31. The 18-month clock will stop and the sanctions will not take effect if, within 18 months after the date of the finding, EPA finds that the State has made a complete nonattainment SIP submission for each area for which the finding is made. In addition, EPA is not required to promulgate a FIP if the State makes the required SIP submittal, and EPA takes final action to approve the submittal, within 2 years of EPA's finding.

At approximately the same time as the signing of this notice, EPA Regional Administrators are sending letters to the States of Georgia, Illinois, and Pennsylvania, informing them that EPA is determining that they have failed to make one or more of the required SIP submissions for the specified areas. These letters, and any accompanying enclosures, have been included in the docket to this rulemaking.

II. This Action

In this action, EPA is making a finding of failure to submit for three States with regard to the $PM_{2.5}$ nonattainment areas listed below. In each case, the State failed to submit one or more of the required nonattainment SIP elements identified in the CAA and in the $PM_{2.5}$ Implementation Rule:

- —Attainment demonstration (including emission inventory and modeling; CAA section 172(c)(1) and (3), and 40 CFR 51.1007 and 1008);
- —RACM/RACT (CAA section 172(c)(1) and 40 CFR 51.1010);
- —RFP (CAA sections 172(c)(2) and 40 CFR 51.1009); and
- —Contingency measures (CAA sections 172(c)(9) and 40 CFR 51.1012).

In accordance with CAA section 179, this finding starts the 18-month emission offset sanctions clock, the 24-month highway funding sanctions clock, and a 24-month clock for the promulgation by EPA of a FIP. This action will be effective on November 27, 2009.

State	Area	
Georgia	Atlanta. St. Louis (Illinois portion only).	

State	Area	
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania	Liberty-Clairton. Philadelphia-Wil- mington (PA por- tion only).	

III. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews

A. Notice and Comment Under the Administrative Procedure Act

This is a final EPA action, but is not subject to notice-and-comment requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C. 553(b). EPA believes that, because of the limited time provided to make findings of failure to submit regarding SIP submissions, Congress did not intend such findings to be subject to noticeand-comment rulemaking. However, to the extent such findings are subject to notice-and-comment rulemaking, EPA invokes the good cause exception pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. 553(b)(3)(B). Notice and comment are unnecessary because no EPA judgment is involved in making a nonsubstantive finding of failure to submit elements of SIP submissions required by the CAA. Furthermore, providing notice and comment would be impracticable because of the limited time provided under the statute for making such determinations. Finally, notice and comment would be contrary to the public interest because it would divert agency resources from the critical substantive review of complete SIPs. See 58 FR 51270, 51272, n.17 (Oct. 1, 1993); 59 FR 39832, 39853 (Aug. 4, 1994).

B. Effective Date Under the Administrative Procedure Act

This action will be effective on November 27, 2009. Under the APA, 5 U.S.C. 553(d)(3), agency rulemaking may take effect before 30 days after the date of publication in the Federal Register if the agency has good cause to specify an earlier effective date. This action concerns SIP submissions that are already overdue. In addition, this action simply starts a "clock" that will not result in sanctions against the States for 18 months, and that the States may "turn off" by submitting complete SIPs to EPA. These reasons support an effective date prior to 30 days after the date of publication.

C. Executive Order 12866: Regulatory Planning and Review

This action is not a "significant regulatory action" under the terms of Executive Order 12866 (58 FR 51735, October 4, 1993) and is therefore not subject to review by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) under the Executive Order.

D. Paperwork Reduction Act

This action does not impose an information collection burden under the provisions of the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44 U.S.C. 3501 *et seq.* Burden is defined at 5 CFR 1320.3(b). This rule relates to the requirement in the CAA for States to submit SIPs under section Part D of title I of the CAA to satisfy elements required for the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS. The present final rule does not establish any new information collection requirement.

E. Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA)

This final rule is not subject to the Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA), which generally requires an agency to prepare a regulatory flexibility analysis for any rule that will have a significant economic impact on a substantial number of small entities. The RFA applies only to rules subject to noticeand-comment rulemaking requirements under the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) or any other statute. This rule is not subject to notice and comment requirements under the APA or any other statute because, although the rule is subject to the APA, the Agency has invoked the "good cause" exemption under 5 U.S.C. 553(b), therefore it is not subject to the notice and comment requirement. Thus Executive Order 13132 does not apply to this action.

F. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act

This action contains no Federal mandate under the provisions of Title II of the Unfunded Mandates Reform Act of 1998 (UMRA), 2 U.S.C. 1531–1538 for State, local, or tribal governments or the private sector. This action imposed no enforceable duty on any State, local, or tribal governments or the private sector. Therefore, this action is not subject to the requirements of sections 202 and 205 of the UMRA.

This action is also not subject to the requirements of section 203 UMRA because it contains no regulatory requirements that might significantly or uniquely affect small governments. This action does not impose any new obligations or enforceable duties on any small governments.

G. Executive Order 13132: Federalism

This final rule does not have Federalism implications. It will not have substantial direct effects on the States, on the relationship between the national government and the States, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities among the various levels of government, as specified in Executive Order 13132. The CAA establishes the scheme whereby States take the lead in developing plans to meet the NAAQS and the Federal government acts as a backstop where States fail to take the required actions. This rule will not modify the relationship of the States and EPA for purposes of developing programs to implement the NAAQS. Thus, Executive Order 13132 does not apply to this rule.

H. Executive Order 13175: Consultation and Coordination With Indian Tribal Governments

This action does not have tribal implications, as specified in Executive Order 13175 (65 FR 67249, November 9, 2000). This rule responds to the requirement in the CAA for States to submit SIPs to satisfy the nonattainment area requirements of the CAA for the 1997 PM_{2.5} NAAQS. The CAA requires States with areas that are designated nonattainment for the NAAQS to develop a SIP describing how the State will attain and maintain the NAAQS. The rule will not have a substantial direct effect on one or more Indian Tribes, on the relationship between the Federal government and Indian Tribes, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities between the Federal government and Indian Tribes, as specified by Executive Order 13175 (65 FR 67249, November 9, 2000). Thus. Executive Order 13175 does not apply to this action.

I. Executive Order 13045: Protection of Children From Environmental Health and Safety Risks

This final rule is not subject to the Executive Order because it is not economically significant as defined in Executive Order 12866, and because the Agency does not have reason to believe the environmental health or safety risks addressed by this action present a disproportionate risk to children. This action does not directly affect the level of protection provided to human health or the environment.

J. Executive Order 13211: Actions That Significantly Affect Energy Supply, Distribution, or Use

This rule is not a "significant energy action" as defined in Executive Order 13211, "Actions Concerning Regulations That Significantly Affect Energy Supply, Distribution, or Use" (66 FR 28355, May 22, 2001) because it is not likely to have a significant adverse effect on the supply, distribution, or use of energy. In this action, EPA is finding that several States have failed to submit SIPs to satisfy the nonattainment area

requirement of the CAA for the $PM_{2.5}$ NAAOS.

K. National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act

Section 12(d) of the National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act of 1995 (NTTAA), Public Law 104-113, section 12(d) (15 U.S.C. 272 note) directs EPA to use voluntary consensus standards (VCS) in its regulatory activities unless to do so would be inconsistent with applicable law or otherwise impracticable. Voluntary consensus standards are technical standards (e.g., materials specifications, test methods, sampling procedures, and business practices) that are developed or adopted by VCS bodies. The NTTAA directs EPA to provide Congress, through OMB, explanations when the Agency decides not to use available and applicable voluntary consensus standards.

This action does not involve technical standards. Therefore, EPA did not consider the use of any VCS.

L. Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions To Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations

Executive Order 12898 (59 FR 7629 (Feb. 16, 1994)) establishes Federal executive policy on environmental justice. Its main provision directs Federal agencies, to the greatest extent practicable and permitted by law, to make environmental justice part of their mission by identifying and addressing, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects of their programs, policies, and activities on minority populations and low-income populations in the United States.

ÉPA has determined that this final rule will not have disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority or low-income populations because it does not directly affect the level of protection provided to human health or the environment.

M. Congressional Review Act

The Congressional Review Act, 5 U.S.C. 801 et seq., as added by the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, generally provides that before a rule may take effect, the agency promulgating the rule must submit a rule report, which includes a copy of the rule, to each House of the Congress and to the Comptroller General of the United States. EPA will submit a report containing this action and other required information to the U.S. Senate, the U.S. House of Representatives, and

the Comptroller General of the United States prior to publication of the rule in the **Federal Register**. A Major rule cannot take effect until 60 days after it is published in the **Federal Register**. This action is not a "major rule" as defined by 5 U.S.C. 804(2). This rule will be effective November 27, 2009.

N. Judicial Review

Under section 307(b)(1) of the CAA, petitions for judicial review of this action must be filed in the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit Court within 60 days from the date final action is published in the **Federal Register**. Filing a petition for reconsideration by the Administrator of this final action does not affect the finality of this action for the purposes of judicial review nor does it extend the time within which a petition for judicial review must be filed, and shall not postpone the effectiveness of action.

Thus, any petitions for review of this action making findings of failure to submit $PM_{2.5}$ SIPs for the nonattainment areas identified in section II above, must be filed in the Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit within 60 days from the date final action is published in the **Federal Register**.

List of Subjects in 40 CFR Part 52

Environmental protection, Administrative practice and procedure, Air pollution control, Incorporation by reference, Intergovernmental relations, Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

Dated: November 19, 2009.

Gina McCarthy.

Assistant Administrator, Office of Air and Radiation.

[FR Doc. E9–28257 Filed 11–25–09; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6560–50–P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

50 CFR Part 648

[Docket No. 090206144-9697-02] RIN 0648-XT09

Fisheries of the Northeastern United States; Atlantic Bluefish Fishery; Commercial Quota Harvested for New Jersey

AGENCY: National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Commerce.

ACTION: Closure of commercial fishery.

SUMMARY: NMFS announces that the Atlantic bluefish commercial quota available to New Jersey has been harvested. Vessels issued a commercial Federal fisheries permit for the Atlantic bluefish fishery may not land bluefish in New Jersey for the remainder of calendar year 2009, unless additional quota becomes available through a transfer. Regulations governing the Atlantic bluefish fishery require publication of this notification to advise New Jersey that the quota has been harvested and to advise vessel permit holders and dealer permit holders that no commercial quota is available for landing bluefish in New Jersey.

DATES: Effective 0001 hours, November 25, 2009, through 2400 hours, December 31, 2009.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Sarah Heil, Fishery Management Specialist, (978) 281–9257.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Regulations governing the Atlantic bluefish fishery are found at 50 CFR part 648. The regulations require annual specification of a commercial quota that is apportioned on a percentage basis among the coastal states from Florida through Maine. The process to set the annual commercial quota and the percent allocated to each state is described in § 648.160.

On May 4, 2009, NMFS published the final specifications for the Atlantic bluefish fishery (74 FR 20423). The initial Federal coastwide commercial quota for Atlantic bluefish for the 2009 calendar year was set equal to 4,991,000 lb (2,263 mt). The initial commercial quota was adjusted by transferring 4,838,000 lb (2,194 mt) from the initial recreational allocation, resulting in a total commercial quota of 9,828,000 lb (4,458 mt). The percent allocated to vessels landing bluefish in New Jersey is 14.8162 percent, resulting in an initial commercial quota of 1,441,702 lb (653.95 mt).

The regulations at § 648.161(b) require the Administrator, Northeast Region, NMFS (Regional Administrator), to monitor state commercial quotas and to determine when a state's commercial quota has been harvested. NMFS then publishes a notification in the Federal **Register** to advise the state and to notify Federal vessel and dealer permit holders that, effective upon a specific date, the state's commercial quota has been harvested and no commercial quota is available for landing bluefish in that state. The Regional Administrator has determined, based upon dealer reports and other available information, that New Jersey has harvested its quota for calendar year 2009.

The regulations at § 648.4(b) provide that Federal permit holders agree, as a condition of the permit, not to land bluefish in any state that the Regional Administrator has determined no longer has commercial quota available. Therefore, effective 0001 hours, November 25, 2009, further landings of bluefish in New Jersey by vessels holding Atlantic bluefish commercial Federal fisheries permits are prohibited for the remainder of the 2009 calendar year, unless additional quota becomes available through a transfer and is announced in the Federal Register. Effective 0001 hours, November 25, 2009, federally permitted dealers are also notified that they may not purchase bluefish from federally permitted vessels that land in New Jersey for the remainder of the calendar year, or until additional quota becomes available through a transfer.

Classification

This action is required by 50 CFR part 648 and is exempt from review under Executive Order 12866.

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.

Dated: November 23, 2009.

Emily H. Menashes,

Acting Director, Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service. [FR Doc. E9–28397 Filed 11–23–09; 4:15 pm] BILLING CODE 3510–22–8

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

50 CFR Part 648

[Docket No. 061228342-7068-02]

RIN 0648-XT07

Fisheries of the Northeastern United States; Atlantic Herring Fishery; Total Allowable Catch Harvested for Management Area 1A

AGENCY: National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Commerce.

ACTION: Temporary rule; closure.

SUMMARY: NMFS announces that, effective 0001 hours, November 26, 2009, federally permitted vessels may not fish for, catch, possess, transfer, or land more than 2,000 lb (907.2 kg) of Atlantic herring in or from Management Area 1A (Area 1A) per trip or calendar day until January 1, 2010, when the 2010 total allowable catch (TAC) becomes available, except for transiting purposes as described in this notice.